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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gati Kintetsu Express Private Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
Oncluding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw your attention to : 
1. Note to 44(a) the financial statements, which states that managerial remuneration paid to two 

executive directors of the Company (including one executive director resigned in September 2020) for 
the year ended March 31, 2021 has exceeded the limit prescribed under section 197 read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 by Rs.275 lakhs. Pending necessary approva ls for the excess 
remuneration from members of the company, no adjustment to the financia l statements has been 
made. 

2. Note 48 of the financial statement, which describes the extent to which Covid 19 pandemic will impact 
company's result which depend on the future developments that are highly uncertain. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

In addition to the matter described in the 'Basis of Opinion 'section above, we have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have fulfilled the 
responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our 
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The 
results of our audit procedures performed by us, including those procedures performed to address the matters 
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Sr. No. 
1 

Sr. No. 
2 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 
Impairment of Goodwill (See Note 5 to the financial statements) 

The Company holds goodwill of Rs.12506 Our audit with respect to impairment testing of 
lakhs on the statements of financial goodwill included the following : 
position. I Engaging internal fair valuation experts to 

The determination of the recoverable 
challenge management's underlying assumptions 
and appropriateness of the valuation model used. 

amount of goodwill is a key judgment area I Comparing the Company's assumptions with 
as small changes in assumptions made, comparable benchmarks in relation to key inputs 
notably in respect of the future such as long-term growth rates and discount 
performance of the business and the rates. 
discount rates applied to future cash flows 

I Assessing the appropriateness of the forecasted 
projections can result in material different 

cash flows within the budgeted period based on 
outcomes. 

their understanding of the business and sector 
experience. 

How our audit addressed the ke audit matters 
See Note 12 to the financial statements 

The gross balance of trade receivables as Our audit with respect to determining recoverability 
at March 31, 2021 amounted to Rs.21443 of Trade Receivables included the following : 
lakhs. 

Due to the inherent subjectivity that is 
involved in making judgments in relation to 
credit risk exposures to determine the 
recoverability of trade receivables, it is 
considered a key audit matter. 

• Evaluating the Company's processes and 
controls relating to the monitoring of trade 
receivables and review of credit risks of 
customers. 

• Examination of management's assessment of 
the credit review procedures of trade receivables, 
obtaining trade receivable confirmations, and 
mapping receipts from the trade receivables after 
the year end on test basis. 

• Evaluation of management's assumptions used 
to determine the expected credit loss on the trade 
receivables , through detailed analyses of ageing 
of receivables to historical patterns of receipts, 
assessment of materia l overdue individual trade 
receivables and risks specific to the trade 
receivable. 
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 
3 Reasonableness of carrying amount of Assets held for sale (See Note 17 to the financial 

statements) 

The Company has classified assets 
earmarked for disposal as Assets held for 
sales. Assets held for sales carried at fair 
value have been estimated using significant 
unobservable input including non-binding 
offers from and negotiation held with 
prospective buyers as a result of which fair 
value is sensitive to change in input 
assumption. 

Our audit with respect to determining carrying value 
of Assets held for sales included the following: 

• Evaluating the Company's processes and 
controls relating to the classification and 
valuation of assets held for sale 

• Examination of management's assessment of 
expectation of outcome of negotiation with 
prospective buyer. 

• Review of independent valuation report of 
independent external valuer 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fai r view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern . 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our Audit, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with the relevant rules thereon. 

( e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to financial statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure B" of this report. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act except managerial remuneration paid to two executive directors 
of the Company (including one executive director resigned in September 2020) which is in excess 
of the limit prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 by Rs. 275 Lakhs for the 
financial year 2020-21, which is subject to the approval of shareholders in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and accord ing to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements - Note 37(i) and 45 to the financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to investor education and 
protection fund by the company. 

Date: May 18, 2021 
Place: Kolkata 

Firm's Regis 

Anurag · ghi) 
Partner 

Membership No. 066274 
UDIN: 21 066274AAAABD6594 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report of even date) 

We report that: 

i. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of property, plant and equipment. 

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of property, plant and 
equipment have been carried out in terms of the phased program of its verification adopted by the 
Company and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency 
of verification is reasonable having regard to size of the Company and nature of its business. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 4(a) on Property 
Plant and Equipment to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except in respect 
of one Building (Located at Pune) having gross block of Rs.194.5 lakhs and net block of Rs.160.46 
lakhs, the title deeds of which are held in the name of erstwhile companies, which were acquired from 
the Holding Company under a Business Transfer Agreement in the financial year 2011 - 12. 

ii. The company is a service company and has no inventory, accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the 
Order, 2016 are not applicable. 

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedure performed by us the Company 
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other 
parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 
provisions of paragraph 3(iii), 3(iii) (a) to 3(iii) (c) of the said Order are not applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments made and providing 
guarantees and securities. 

v. In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with 
regard to deposits accepted from the public during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not 
applicable. 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, 
for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company examined by us, except for dues in respect of professional tax and provident fund, 
the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Employees' State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as 
applicable, to the appropriate authorities. 

There are no arrears in respect of the aforesaid dues as at March 31 ,2021 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable except professional tax of Rs.0.16 lakhs and provident fund of Rs.0.52 lakhs 
which are due for more than 6 months. 
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the Company examined by 
us, there are no dues of goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, service tax and value added 
tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax and 
sales tax, as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows: 

Name of the Statute 
Nature Of Amount in lakhs Period to which the Forum where dispute 
Dues (Rs.) amount relates is pending 

2013-14, 
2014-15, Income Tax Appellate 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 391.41 
2015-16, Tribunal, 
2016-17 Commissioner 
2017-18 (Appeals) 
2018-19 
2013-14, Assistant Comm, 
2014-15, Commercial Tax, 

Indirect Tax Sales tax 322.6 2015-16, Mobile Squad Unit-4 
2016-17, Commercial Tax 
2017-18 Mathura 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution, 
bank or Government. The Company had neither any outstanding debenture at the beginning of the year nor 
has it issued any debenture during the year. 

ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, 
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

x. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

xi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act except managerial remuneration paid to two executive directors of the Company 
(including one executive director resigned in September 2020) for the year which is in excess of the limit 
prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 by Rs. 275 lakhs for the financial year 2020-21, 
which is subject to the approval of shareholders in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the order is not applicable 
to the company. 
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xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him. According ly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

Date: May18, 2021 
Place: Kolkata 

(A urag ·n i) 
Partner 

Membership No. 066274 
UDIN: 21066274AAAABD6594 
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Gati Kintetsu Express 
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31 , 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies , 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, as 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to these financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's 
internal financial control with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Basis of Qualified Opinion 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material 
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting as at March 31 , 2021 : 

a. The company's internal financial control related to contract revenue mapping in the Information 
technology system is not operating effectively and resulting in inadequate control over these 
processes. Management has represented that the remediation plan and necessary implementation 
steps have been taken. 

b. The company did not have an effective integration between various functional software relating to 
sales and expenses with the accounting software resulting in weak internal control and reconciliation 
differences in Control Accounts in areas of trade receivables, trade payables, security deposits and 
operational advances. 

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with reference 
to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's 
annual or interim financia l statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. 
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Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in the 'Basis of Qualified 
Opinion ' section above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, 
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31 , 2021 , 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, tim ing, and 
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 financial statements of the Company, and the 
material weakness does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

Date: May 18, 2021 
Place: Kolkatas 

(Anurag i) 
Partner 

Membership No. 066274 
UDIN: 21066274AAAABD6594 



CATI 1..:I NTETSU EXPRESS PRl\'ATE Lll\llTED 
Balanrc Shrrt as at Marrh 31 , 202 1 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Right-of-use Asset 
Goodwill 
Other Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets under Development 
Financial Assets 

Loans 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
Non Current Tax Asset (Net) 
Other Non-Current Assets 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Loans 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Bank Balances other than above 
Other Financial Assets 

Other Current Assets 
Assets Classified - Held For Sale 

TOT AL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
TOT AL EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 
Lease Liabilities 

Provisions 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 
Lease Liabilities 
Trade Payables 
(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 
Other Financial Liabilities 

Other Current Liabilities 
Provisions 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 
TOT AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements 

Notes 

4A 
48 
5 
6 
7 

8 
9 
10 
II 

8 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 

18 
19 

20 
21 
22 

23 
21 
24 

25 
26 
27 

3 

As at 
Mnrrh 31. 2021 

7,646 
5,460 

12,506 
549 

449 
2,423 
7,596 

51 
36,680 

2,581 
18,441 
3,014 
1,082 

310 
3,083 
7,470 

35,981 
72,661 

50 
29,889 
29,939 

1, 11 3 
4,942 
1,064 
7,119 

14,265 
1,122 

343 
7,950 
6,466 
5,080 

377 
35,603 
42,722 
72,661 

(~ in lakhs) 
As at 

Mmh 31. 2020 

2 1,054 
6,428 

12,506 
345 
207 

465 
623 

7,669 
66 

49,363 

2,841 
20,240 

1,9 13 
928 
896 

1,553 

28,371 
77,734 

50 
34,501 
34,551 

4,695 
5,806 

754 
Il,255 

12,496 
960 

110 
8,6 18 
6,237 
3,331 

176 
31,928 
43,183 
77,734 

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements j 
As per our report of even date For and on be 

Anurag Singhi 
Partner 
Membership no: 066274 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: May 18, 2021 

o: 302049E Adarsh egde 
Chaim1an & Ma ging Director 

DIN: 00 35040 

~~~)~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: May 18, 2021 

Company Secretary 
M No. F8069 



GATI h:INTETSU EXPRESS PRIVATE LIM ITED 

Statemenl of Profit a nd Loss for the yea r ended Marcl1 3 1, 202 1 

Particulars 

(I) INCOM E 
Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

TOT AL INCOME (I) 
(II) EXPENSES 

Operating Expenses 
Employee Benefits Expense 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 

Other Expenses 

TOTAL EXPENSES (11). 
(Ill) PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX ( 1-11) 
(IV) Exceptional Items 

(V) PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (III-IV) 
(VJ) TAX EXPENSES 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

TOT ALT AX EXPENSES 

(VII) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (V-VJ) 

(VIII) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI) 
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 
a) Re-Measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 

b) Income tax effect on above item 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (NET OFT AX) 

(IX) TOT AL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (Vlll+Vll) 

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE 
[Nominal value per share~ 10/- (March 31, 2020: f 10/-)] 
Basic (in ~) 

Diluted (in ~) 

Notes 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

43. 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2021 

1,0 1, 185 

496 

1,01,681 

70, 150 

15,084 

2,582 
3,136 

12,662 

1,03,614 
(1,933) 

4, 151 

(6,084) 

(1,718) 

(1,718) 

(4,366) 

(329) 

83 
(246) 

(4,612) 

(873.23) 

(873.23) 

(~ in lakhs ) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2020 

1,15,943 

460 

1,16,403 

81 ,256 

15,480 

2,892 
3,244 

14,384 

1,17,256 
(853) 

(853) 

11 7 

(192) 

(75) 

(778) 

(106) 
27 

(79) 

(857) 

(155.50) 

{155.50) 

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

For Singhi & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
· n No: 302049E 

Partner 

Membership no: 066274 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: May 18, 2021 

For and on behalf of the 

Adars Hegde 

Chairman & anaging director 

DIN: 035040 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

M No. F8069 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: May 18, 202 1 



Gali Kintrtsu E:1.prrss Private Limitrcl 

Cash Flo11 Stalrmcnt fo r the~ car c1ulcd J\tarrh 31, 202 1 

PA RTICULARS 

(A) Cash flows from Operating Activities 
Profit/( Loss) Before Taxes and after exceptional items as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Adjustment for: 
Depreciation & Amortizat ion expense 

Finance costs 
Loss on d isposal of Property, Plant and Equipment(Net) 
Interest Income from deposits with Bank 

Interest Income from unwinding of financial assets 
Interest on Income tax refund 
Allowance for Doubtful receivable 

Allowance for other financial assets 
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 

Allowance for Doubtful receivables - written back 
Lia bi Ii ties no longer required - written back 

Operating profits before working capital changes 

(increase) I Decrease in Trade Receivables 

(Increase) I Decrease in Other Current Assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets 

(Increase) I Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets 
increase I (Decrease) in Other current Liabil ities 

Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables 
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liab_ilities 

Increase I (Decrease) in Non Current Provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Direct Tax paid (net of refunds) 

Net Cash Flows generated/(used) from Operating Activities 

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities 
Interest Received 

Proceeds from sale of Property Plant and Equipment 
Proceeds from sale of Asset held for sale 

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment including Capital work in Progress and Capital 
Advances 

Investment in Bank Fixed Deposits 

Net Cash Flows (used in)/generated from Investing Activities 

(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 

Increase I (Decrease) in Short term Borrowings (net) 

Finance cost 
Payment of interest on lease liabilities 

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 
Dividend Paid including tax 

Net Cash Flows (used in)/generated from Financing Activities 

Net Increase I (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B + C) 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes: 

(~ in lakh >) 

Ycarcnd<'cl \'<'ar cncl<'d 
March 3 1, 2021 !\larch 31, 2020 

(6,084) (853) 

3136 3,244 
2582 2,892 
4225 36 

(70) ( 111) 
(68) 

(277) 
747 848 
2 19 219 
102 525 

( 11) (76) 
(99) (230) 

4470 6,426 

1,063 1,176 
( 1,85 1) 385 

862 (70 1) 

30 583 
1,749 463 
(336) (1,9 17) 

202 (28) 
2,188 152 

(19) (9 1) 

8,358 6,448 
350 (2,423) 

8,708 4,025 

70 111 
184 144 

278 

(657) (2,874) 

( 154) 92 

(279) (2,527) 

939 3,901 
(6,480) (1 ,376) 

1,769 2,776 
(1 ,788) (2,046) 

(794) (846) 
(974) (801) 

(1,302) 

(7,328) 306 

1, 101 1,804 

1,913 109 

3,0 14 1,913 

1. The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the " Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on Statement of 
Cash Flow as notified under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015. 
2. Component of Cash & Cash Equivalents: -

Cash on Hand 
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 
Cash & Cash Equivalent as per Balance sheet (r efer note no 13) 

/U~~J~~~~n 

40 
I 873 
1,9 13 



Drht Rrronciliation Statrmrnt in al' rordanrr with lnrl AS 7 
Oµrning Balanrrs 
Non C'urrt:nt 801TO\\ ing, 
l\ lovrmrnt 
Non Current Borrowings 
C los ing Ba lancrs 
Non Current Borrowin s 

4.695 4.280 

(3.582) 41 5 

I ,I I 3 4,695 

T he accompanying significant accounti ng policies a nd notes form an integral part of the Fina ncial Statements 
As per our report of even date 

Partner 
Membership no: 066274 

Place: Ko lkata 

Date: May 18, 202 1 

o: 302049E 

For and on beha 

egde 
aging director 

• Dl~tO 35040 

{}kf./;v~ ~) 
Rohan Mittal 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: May 18, 2021 

TS Maharani 
Company Secretary 

M No. F8069 



GATI KJNTETSU EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended March 31, 2021 

................... ...... ......... ................ 
Particulars 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 
Add/( Less): Changes in EQuitv Share Caoital for the year ended March 3 1, 2020 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 
Add/( Less): Changes in Equity Share Caoital for the year ended March 3 1, 2021 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 

- ~ --- -· -·-· 

Particulars 

Securities Premium 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 17,836 
Profit/( Loss) for the year -
Final dividend on equity shares -
Tax on dividend on equity shares -
Remeasurement gain/(loss) (net of deferred tax) -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 17,836 
Profit/(Loss) for the year -
Remeasurement gainl(loss) (net of deferred tax) -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 17,836 

The accompanying significant accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 
As per our report of even date 

Partner 

Membership no: 066274 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: May 18, 2021 

Reserves and Surplus 

General Reserve 

1,720 

-
-
-
-

1,720 

-
-

l ,720 

\' Ill 1<.l"-11~/ 

No. of Shares Amount 

5,00,000 so 
- -

S,00,000 so 
-

S,00,000 50 

" ... .......... ~./ 

Total 

Retained Earnings 

17,104 36,660 
(778) (778) 

(1,080) (1 ,080) 
(222) (222) 

(79) (79) 

14,94S 34,501 
(4,366) (4,366) 

(246) (246) 
10,333 29,889 

'" ... '" ''"''""'"~ ''°''""" 
Adarsf egde 

Chainnan & M aging director 
DIN: 0 35040 

t~~t,)\~~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: May 18, 2021 

Company Secretary 
M No. F8069 



GATI KINTETSU EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

1) Corporate and general information: 
Gati Kintetsu Express Private Limited ("the Company" or "Gkepl") was incorporated in 2007 under provisions of 
Companies Act, 1956 having its Registered and Corporate Offi ce at Plot no.20, Survey no.12, Kothaguda, Kondapur, 
Hyderabad - 500 084, Telangana, India. The company is India' s pioneer and leader in express distribution and supply 
chain solutions. The business was transferred from Gati Limited on 1st April 2012. Gati Limited the holding company 
holds 70% and Kintetsu world (KWE) Japan group, holds the balance. An intrinsic network that spans length and 
breadth of India - Gkepl has a reach of more than 99% of districts in India. 

2) Basis of Accounting 
2.1 Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with and in compliance, in all material aspects, with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 201 3 (the "Act") read along with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended and other provisions of the Act. The presentation of 
the Financial Statements is based on Ind AS Schedule ill of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.2 Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention, except 
~ Financial Instruments - Measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost; 
~ Plan Assets under defined benefi t plans- Measured at fair value; 

2.3 F unctional and Presentation Currency 
All financial information presented in Indian rupees (INR) which is the Company' s functional currency, has been 
rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated. 

2.4 Use of Estimates and Judgements 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, the accompanying disclosures 
and disclosures of contingent liabilities. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Uncertainty about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The application of accounting policies that require 
critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumption in these financial 
statements have been disclosed below. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of 
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 
Critical accounting estimates and judgments used are as below: 

(i) Defined benefit obligation 
(ii) Recognition of current tax and deferred tax 
(iii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies 
(iv) Fair value measurement of Financial instruments 
(v) Provision for Doubtful Debts and advances 
(vi) Goodwill impairment 

2.5 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID- 19 on the 
caITying amounts of receivables and unbilled revenues. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future 
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of 
these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related 
information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based 
on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. 



The impact of COVJD-19 on the Company"s financia l statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of 
approval of these financial statements. 

2.6 Current Vs Non-Current Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cunent/ non-cunent classification. An asset 
is classified as cunent when it is: 

~ Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
~ Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
~ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
~ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

All the other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
~ It is expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle; 
~ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
~ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
~ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non
current assets and liabilities respectively. 

2.7 Recent accounting pronouncements - issued but not yet effective 
On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through notification amended Schedule Ill of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 
202 1. Key amendments relating to Division II which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to 
comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:-

Balance Sheet: 
~ Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ' financial liabilities', duly distinguished as current 

or non-current. 
~ Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to 

prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period. 
~ Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters. 
~ Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible 

asset under development. 
~ If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial 

institutions, then disclosure of detai ls of where it has been used. 
~ Current maturities of Long-term borrowings shall be disclosed separately under the heading Short Term 

Borrowing. 
~ Security Deposits to be shown under the head of Other Non-Current Assets instead of Long-term Loan & 

Advances. 
~ Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement' such as compliance with approved schemes of 

arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in 
name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related 
parties, details of benami property held etc. 

~ Ratios-Following Ratios to be disclosed: -
(a) Current Ratio, (b) Debt-Equity Ratio, (c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, (d) Return on Equity Ratio, (e) 
Inventory turnover ratio, (f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, (g) Trade payables turnover ratio, (h) Net capital 
turnover ratio, (i) Net profit ratio, (j) Return on Capital employed, (k) Return on investment. 



Statement of profit and loss: 
)> Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or 

virtual cunency specified under the head 'additiona l information · in the notes fonning part of the standalone 
financial statements. 

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law. 

3) Significant Accounting Policies: 
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given 
below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and Measurement: 
)> Property, plant and equipment (PPE) held for use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, 

are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and cumulative impainnent losses (if any). 
)> Cost comprises of cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of duties (net of tax) incidental expenses, interest 

and erection/commissioning expenses incurred up to the date asset is put to use. Administrative and other general 
overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to construction or acquisition of PPE or bringing the PPE to 
working condition are allocated and capitalized as a part of cost of PPE. When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific 
useful lives. 

Capital work in progress and Capital Advances: 
Capital work-in-progress represents Property, Plant and Equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as at 
the Balance sheet date. Capital advances given towards purchase/ acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet 
date are disclosed separately as Other Non-current Assets. 

Non-current assets held for sale 
Non-current assets held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet when the following criteria are met 
- the Company is committed to selling the assets; 
- the assets are available for sale immediately; 
- an active plan of sale has commenced; and 
- sale is expected to be completed within 12 months. 
Assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to 
sell. Assets held for sale are no longer amortised or depreciated. 

Subsequent Expenditure: 
)> Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognized when replaced. 

Ji> Items such as spare parts, stand by equipment's and servicing equipment's that meet the definition of property, 
plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. 

)> Cost in nature ofrepair and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation and Amortisation: 
)> Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates determined based on the useful lives 

of respective assets as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies act, 2013. 
)> Freehold land is not depreciated. 
)> Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life. 
)> Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted, if 

appropriate. 



~ Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. , from (up to) the date on 
which asset is ready for use (disposed-of!). 

De-recognition Assets: 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon di sposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

3.2 Intangible Assets: 
Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated amortisation or cumulative impairment, if any. The 
Company capitalizes identifiable costs relating to development of internally generated software and these are stated 
net of accumulated amortisation. 
Intangible assets under development comprise costs relating to development of software that are not yet ready for their 
intended use as at the balance sheet date. 
The carrying amount of the intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefit is expected 
from its use. Any gain or loss is recognized in the statement of Profit and loss. 

3.3 Lease 
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and 
leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

(i) Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets) 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset 
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairmFnt 
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of 
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date 
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise 
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are 
also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Note 3.4 Impainnent of assets. 

(ii) Lease Liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and 
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a 
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the 
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not 
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period 
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, 
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit 
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to 
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the can-ying amount of lease 
liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., 
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a 
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. Lease liability and ROU assets have been 
separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 



(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Company applies the short-term lease recogni tion exemption to its short-term leases of properties, machinery and 
equipment (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office 
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn. 

3.4 Impairment of assets: 

a) The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible or 
intangible), may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. 
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset 's or cash generating units (CGU) net selling price and 
its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered to be impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impainnent losses are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any 
indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or 
may have decreased and such reversal is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

b) Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, 
though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes 
in the economic environment. 

c) An entity shall test an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset not yet available for 
use for impairment, irrespective of whether there is any indication of impainnent. This impainnent test may be 
perfonned at any time during the year, provided it is perfonned at the same time every year. 

3.5 Foreign currency Transactions: 

a) The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the Company. 

b) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the 
transaction. 

c) At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are restated using the closing exchange rate. 
d) Any exchange difference on account of settlement of foreign currency transactions and restatement of 

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

e) Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the 
exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. 

3.6 Revenue recognition: 
Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net off 
variable consideration) allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services 
rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various elements like discounts etc. offered by the company 
as part of the contract. The variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. 

a) Rendering of services: 
Income from logistics services rendered are recognized when control over the services transferred to the customer 
i.e. when the customer has the ability to control the use of the transferred services as per the terms of contract. 
Revenue is recognized at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 



b) Others: 
I.Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the company and amount of income can be measured reliably. 
II. Rent income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

3. 7 Financial instruments: 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabi lity or equity 
instrument in another entity. 

(i) Financial assets: 
a) Initial recognition and measurement: 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at: 
);;>- Amortized Cost; or 
);;>- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI); or 
);;>- Fair value through Profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Financial asset are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 
company changes its business model for managing financial asset. In the case of financial assets, not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of 
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in 
the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e. , the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

• Financial assets at amortized cost: 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 
flows; and 
(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
The effective interest rate (EIR) amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. This category generally applies to long-term deposits and long-term trade receivables. 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect 
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI-equity 
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 
Financial assets are measured at the FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 
(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 
All financial assets which are not classified/ measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that 
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so 
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 



b) Subsequent measurement 
F f b or purposes o SU sequent measurement: 

Cate2orv Subsequent measurement and gains and Losses 
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 

Financial assets at 
method (EIR). 

amortized cost 
The amortized cost is reduced by impainnent losses, if any. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity 
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 

investments at 
income in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery 

FVOCI 
of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI 
and are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
FVTPL interest or dividend income, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(ii) Financial Liability: 
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTPL 

a) Initial Recognition & Subsequent measurement: 
• Financial liabilities through fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is 
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net 
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost: 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well 
as through the EIR amortization process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

b) Financial guarantee liability: 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value net off transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the 
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized 
less cumulative amortisation. 

(iii) Impairment of Financial Assets: 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impainnent loss on the Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another 
financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115. 
The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. 
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognizes impaim1ent loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 
As a practical expedient, the Company uses historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of 
its trade receivables. 



(iv) De-recognition: 
a) Financial Assets: 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only 
)> when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 
)> It transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fl ows in a transaction in which substantially all of 

the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither 
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control 
of the financial asset. 

b) Financial liabilities: 
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 
expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its tenns are modified and the cash flows 
under the modified tenns are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
tenns is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(v) Offsetting: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet, when and only 
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them 
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

3.8 Fair Value measurement: 
A number of the Company' s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for financial 
assets and financial liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of 
fair values. The management has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and it 
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. The Company measures financial assets 
and financial liability at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

)> Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
)> Level 2- inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
)> Level 3- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company detennines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

3.9 Employee benefits: 
a) Defined contribution plan: 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes 
specified monthly contributions of employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund and 
Employee State insurance scheme which is defined contribution plans. Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement of Profit and Loss in the periods 
during which the related services are rendered by employees. 



b) Defined benefit plan: 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
The Company' s gratui ty benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of 
defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the 
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation 
of defined benefit obligation is performed annuall y by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan ('the asset cei ling'). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, 
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan 
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized in Other 
comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) for the period by appl ying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit 
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to 
past service ('past service cost ' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately 
in Statement of profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit 
plan when the settlement occurs. 

The contributions are deposited with the Life Insurance Corporation of India based on information received by 
the Company. When the benefi ts of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefi t related to past service 
by employees is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until 
the benefi ts become vested. 

c) Compensated absences: 
As per policy of the Company, employees can carry forward unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize 
it in next service period or receive cash compensation. Since the compensated absences fall due wholly within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also expected 
to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a current 
employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the year in which the 
employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. 
The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the 
additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end. The Company's 
liability is actuarially detem1ined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Re
measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

d) Short-term employee benefit: 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the 
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 



3.10 Income taxes: 
The tax expense for the period comp1ises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. ID which 
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

a) Current tax: 
Cun ent tax assets and liabili ties are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

b) Deferred tax: 
Defened tax is recognised on temporary differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabili ties in the 
financial statements and the coITesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period. 

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents: 
Jn the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cheques in hand, demand deposits 
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

3.12 Provisions and Contingencies: 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence 
would be confinned by the occurrence or non-occmrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Company. Such liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements. No 
disclosure is made if the possibility of an outflow on this account is remote. 
A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events, the existence of which will be confim1ed only by 
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. Contingent assets are not recognised till the reali sation of the income is virtually certain. However, the 
same are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits are possible. 

3.13 Borrowing cost: 
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost 
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
Where there is an unrealized exchange Joss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is 
a realised or unrealized gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the 
extent of the loss previously recognised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest. 

3.14 Segment Reporting: 
Segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker ( 'CODM') decides 
about resource allocation and reviews performance. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items 
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment capital 
expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property and equipment and intangible assets 
other than goodwill. 



3.15 
(i) 

(ii) 

Earnings per share: 
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before Other Comprehensive Income 
for the petiod attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. 

Diluted earnings per share: 
Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into 
account: 

);;> The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 
shares, and 

);;> The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming 
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 



CATI KINTETSU EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021 

4A. Property, Plant and Equipment 

TANGIBLE ASSETS 

Particulars 

Freehold Land 

Buildini?S 
Vehicles 

Plant & Machinery 
Computer 

Furniture And Fittings 

Office Equipment 

Total 

Particulars 

Freehold Land 

Buildin~ 

Vehicles 

Vehicles - under Finance Lease 
Plant & Machinery 

Computer 

Computers · under Finance Lease 

Furniture And Fittim!S 

Office Equipment 

Total 

Notes: 

As at 
Additions 

March 31, 2020 

8.885 -
4,543 -
4,388 -
4,029 278 

3,967 85 

3,018 64 

2,122 57 

30,952 484 

As at 
Additions 

March 31, 2019 

8,885 -
4,557 -
3.007 1,949 

1,384 -
3.622 428 

3,479 749 

346 -
2,810 208 

2,013 110 

30,103 3,444 

Gross Block 

Assets Reclassified Deductions/ As at 
to held for sale Adjustment March 3 1, 2021 

6,51 6 - 2.369 
3.743 - 800 
2,378 1,131 879 

- I 4.306 

- 576 3.476 

- - 3,082 

- 10 2,169 

12,637 1,718 17,081 

Gross Block 

Reclassified on 
Deductions/ As at 

account of adoption 
of Ind AS 116 

Adjustment March 31, 2020 

- - 8,885 

- 14 4,543 

- 568 4,388 

1,384 -
- 2 1 4,029 

- 261 3.967 

346 - -
- 3.018 

- I 2,122 

1,730 865 30,952 

a) The amount of Contractual commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note. 37(1l)(a) 

b) Refer Note 20. 21. 23 and Note 25 for information on Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as securities by the Company. 

c) 111e Company has not capitalized any borrow ing cost during the year. (March 31 , 2020 - Nil) 

Accumulated Dcoreciation 

As at Depreciation Assets Reclassified Deductions/ As at 
March 31, 2020 for the year to held for sale Adjustment March 3 1. 202 1 

- - - -
651 82 600 - 133 

932 434 531 489 346 
1,8 18 305 - I 2.122 

2,949 483 - 575 2.857 
1,853 239 - - 2.092 
1,695 200 - 10 1.885 
9,898 1,743 1, 13 1 1,075 9,435 

Accumulated Deoreciation 

As at Depreciation 
Reclassified on 

Deductions/ As at 
account of adoption 

March 31, 2019 for the year 
of Ind AS 116 

Adjustment March 31, 2020 

- - -
565 87 - I 65 1 

1,01 4 357 - 439 932 
154 - 154 

1,478 350 - 10 1.818 
2,674 52 1 246 2.949 

80 - 80 - -
1.477 376 - - 1.853 
1,489 207 - I 1.695 
8,931 1,898 234 697 9,898 

d) 111e company has decided to provide I 00 per cent depreciation on the assets having written down value below ten thousand rupees, it has an impact of~ 8 1 lakh. 

e) Refer note 46 for detai led information on assets held for sale. 
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4B Right of use Assets (ROU) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 3 1, 2020 
Buildings 6,124 
Vehicles 1,367 
Comoute~ 346 
Total 7,837 

Particula rs 
As at 

March 31, 2019 
Buildincs 6. 124 
Vehicles• 1,384 
Comoute~• 346 
Total 7,854 
• Opening balances reclassified on adoption of Ind AS 11 6. 
Notes: 

Gross Block 

Addit ions 
Deductions/ 
Adjustment 

456 205 

- 32 
- -
456 237 

Gross Block 

Addit ions 
Deductions/ 
Adj ustment 

- -
- 17 
- -
- 17 

Accumulated Amorti1,ation 

As at As at Amortiu1tion Deductions/ 
March 3 1, 2021 Ma rch 31. 2020 for the year Adiustment 

6.375 936 992 32 
1.335 323 170 13 

346 150 70 0 
8,056 1,409 1,232 45 

Accumulated Amortiz.i tion 

As at As at Amortiz.i t ion Deductions/ 
March 3 1, 2020 March 3 1, 201 9 for the year Ad.iustment 

6,124 - 936 
1.367 154 173 4 

346 80 70 -
7,837 234 1,1 79 4 

a) l11e aggregate depreciation expenses on Right of use Assets (ROU) is included under depreciation and amortization expenses in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
b) l11e company's obligation under leases are secured by lessor's title to leased assets. 

5. Goodwill 

6. O ther Intangible Assets 
~ 

Gross Block Accumulated Amortization 
Particulars As at 

Additions 
Deductions/ As at As at Depreciation Deductions/ 

March 31, 2020 Adjustment March 31, 2021 March 31 , 2020 for the vear Adjustment 

Computer Software 1,276 365 - 1.641 931 161 -
Total 1,276 365 - 1,64 1 931 161 -

Gross Block a t Cost Accumulated Amortiz.it ion 

Particulars As at 
Additions 

Deductions/ As at As at Depreciation Deductions/ 
March 3 1, 2019 Adjustment March 31, 2020 March 3!. 201 9 for the year Ad_j ustment 

Computer Software 1,053 223 - 1.276 764 167 -
Total 1,053 223 - 1,276 764 167 -
Notes: 
a) The amount of Contractual commitments for acquisition of Intangible Assets is disclosed in Note. 37(H)(a) 
b) The Company has not capitalized any borrowing cost during the year. (March 31 , 2020 - Nil) 
c) The company has decided to provide 100 per cent amortization on the assets having written down value below ten thousand rupees. it has an impact of~ I lakh. 

7. Intangible Assets under Development 

Notes: 
Expenses during the year capitalized in respect of Intangible Assets under Development. 
a) Employee Benefit Expenses 
b) Other Expenses 

As at 
March 3 1, 2021 

1,896 

480 
220 

2,596 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

936 
323 
ISO 

1,409 

As at 
Mar ch 31, 2021 

1.092 
1,092 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

931 
931 

Net Carrying 
Value 
As at 

March 31 , 2021 

4.479 

855 
126 

5,460 

(~ in lakhs) 
Net Ca rrying 

Value 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

5. 188 
1.044 

196 
6,428 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

12.506 
12.506 

(~in lakhs) 

Net C arrying 
Value 
As at 

March 31 2020 

5.188 
1.044 

196 
6.428 

(~in lakhs) 

As at 
March 31 2020 

12.506 
12,506 

(~ in lakhs) 
Net Carr:vino Valul' 

As at As at 
March 3 1, 2021 March 31 2020 

549 345 
549 345 

(~in lakhs) 
Net Carrvino Value 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

345 
345 

As at 
March 3 1, 2021 

As at 
March 31 2019 

289 
289 

(~ in lakhs) 

/\s at 
March 3 1 2020 

207 
207 

11 0 
97 

207 
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otcs 011 Fi11a11rial Statcmrnt~ for th r Yra r E11dcd l\larl'113 1, 2021 

8. Loans 

(Unsecured. Considered Good) 

Non C urrent 
Security Deposit with Others 

Tota l (/\) 

C urrent 

Secuiity Deposit with Holding company 

Security Deposit with Others 
Tota l (B) 

G r and Total 

9. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Defen-ed Tax Assets (Net) 

(~ in lal-.hs) 

/\s at As at 
I\ la rch 31 , 202 1 March 31 , 2020 

449 465 
449 465 

575 7 19 
2,006 2, 122 
2,58 1 2,841 

3,030 3,306 

(~in lakhs) 

As at As a t 
Ma rch 31, 2021 March 3 1, 2020 

2,423 623 
2,423 623 

9.1 M ovement in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities during the yea r ended Ma rch 31, 2020 a nd March 3 1, 202 1 

Deferred T a x Bala nce in relation to 

Deferred Tax Assets/(Lia bilities) 
Prope1tv, plant and equipment 

Allowances for Doubtful Receivables 
Employee benefits - Gratuity and Leave Encashment 

Other temporary Differences 
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilit ics) 

Deferred Tax Ba la nce in relation to 

Deferred T ax Assets/(Liabilities) 
Property. p lant and equipment 

Allowanct>5 for Doubtful Receivables 
Employee benefits - Gratuity and Leave Encasl11ncnt 

Other tempora1y Differences 
Deferred T a x Assets/(Liabilities) 

10. Non Current T ax Asset (Net) 

Tax Deducted at Source 

Advance Tax 

Less : Provision for Income Tax 

Total 

11. Other Non-Current Assets 

Capital Advances 
Unsecured, considered good 

Unsecured, considered doubtful 

Less: Provision for doubtful advances 

Tota l (A) 

Deposit with Banks more than 12 months (Marg in money) 

Prepa id Expenses 

T otal (B) 
T ota l (A) + (B) 

As at 
Recognised In 

Ma rch 3 1, 2020 
Statement of Profit & 

Loss 

(552) 1,269 
802 233 

307 (14) 

66 230 
623 1,718 

As a t 
Recognised In 

March 3 1, 2019 
Statement of Profit & 

Loss 

(69 1) 140 
7 18 83 ------- - --------··--
38 1 ( IOI) 

(5) 70 
403 192 

Recognised In Other 
As at 

Comprehensive 
31st Ma rch, 202 1 

Income (OC I) 

- 7 17 

- 1,034 
83 376 
- 296 

83 2,423 

Recognised in Other 
As at 

Comprehensive 
31st Ma rch, 2020 

Income (OC I) 

- (552) 

- 802 ---------- ------ ---
27 301 

- 66 
27 623 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at As at 
Ma rc h 31, 202 I Ma rc h 3 1, 2020 

14,439 14,512 
1,2 11 1,2 11 

15,650 15,723 
(8,054) (8,054) 
7,596 7,669 

~~~~~===~~~~~== 

As at 
March 31, 202 1 

33 
59 
92 
59 
33 
33 

18 

18 
5 1 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
Ma rch 31, 2020 

19 
59 

78 

59 
19 
19 

17 

30 
47 

66 
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12. Trndr Rrrcivablcs 

Unsecured 

Considered good 
( Including from Ho lding Company~ 77 lakhs. 3 1st March-20 - ~ 4052 lakhs) 
Significant increase in credit 1isk 

Credit impaired 

Total 
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Receivables (Refer Note 41 B (i)) 

Tota l 

Note: 

As at 
l\ larr h 3 1, 202 1 

18,441 

3,002 
21,443 

(3,002) 

18,441 

i) No Trade receivables are due from directors and other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. 

As at 
!\ larch 31, 2020 

20,240 

2,266 
22,506 
(2,266) 

20,240 

ii) For details of debts due from finns or private companies in whic h any director is a pa11ner, a director or a member, refer Note 49 of related party transactions. 
iii) The Canying amount of trade receivables is pledged as security for bmTOwings. (Refer Note 23) 
iv) Trade Receivables are non interest bearing and are generally with the credit period of 30 to 60 days. 

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on hand 
Balance With Banks: 

- In Current accounts 

14. Bank Balances other than above 

Balances with Bank held as margin money/ securi ty 
Deposit with Banks with more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 

IS. Other Fina ncial Assets 

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated) 

Advance to Employees 
Interest Accmed on Deposit/ In vestment 

Earnest Money Deposits 
Other Receivables* 
( Including from Holding Company~ I 0 l lakhs , March 3 1, 2020 - ~ 379 lakhs) 
* Includes management fees receivable from Holding Company, and other receivables from business panners 

Total 

16. Other Current Assets 

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Sta ted) 
Advance Against supply of Goods & Services 
Less: - AJlowances on advances 

Prepaid Expenses 
Balances with Statutory Autho1ities 

17 Assets C lassified - Held For Sale 

Land & Building* 

Commercial Vehicles* 
(*) Refer Note 46 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at As a t 
March31, 2021 March 3 1, 2020 

20 40 

2,994 1,873 
3,0 14 1,913 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at As a t 
March 31 , 2021 March 31, 2020 

2 12 153 
870 775 

1,082 928 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 3 1 2021 Ma rch 3 1, 2020 

16 25 

6 11 
10 10 

278 850 

3 10 896 

(~ in lakhs) 

As a t As at 
March 31, 2021 March 3 1, 2020 

3,056 1,241 
(437) (219) 

2,619 1,023 
302 296 
162 234 

3,083 1,553 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 3 1, 2021 March 31, 2020 

6,200 
1,270 

7,470 
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(~ in lakhs) 

18. [quit\' Share Capital Asal l\1arc h 3 1,2021 As at March 31, 2020 

Number A moun t ' umber Amo unt 

Authorized: 
Equity Shares of ~ I 0/- each 7,50,000 75 7,50,000 75 --------

75 75 
Issued: 
Equity Shares of ~ I 0/- each fully paid up 5,oo,ooo _______ 5o_ 5,00,000 50 

50 50 
Subscribed and Paid-up: 
Equity Shares on 10/- each fully paid up 5,oo,ooo _______ 5o_ 5,00,000 50 

5,00,000 50 ================ 5,00,000 50 

a)There has been no c hange I movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repo11ing pe1iod. 

b) Tenns /Rights attached to Shareholders 
The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of~ I 0 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per 
share and equal right for dividend. ln the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after payment of 
all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

c) Gati Limited is the Holding Company of this Company as at 3 lst March 2021, 3,50,000 shares (PY 3,50,000 shares) are held by the holding company. 

d) R ')'' f h econc1 iauon o equity s ares outstan d' I b .. mg at t 1e egmnmg an d h d f h d at t e en o t e reportmg peno : (~. I kh) 111 a · s 

Equity Shares on 10 each fu lly paid 
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 
Shares at the beginning of the year 5,00,000 50 5,00,000 50 
Shares at the end of the year 5,00,000 50 5,00,000 50 

) D ·1 f h I Id I Id' e eta1 s o s are 10 ers 10 mg more th So/. I h c an o s 1ares 111 t e ompany: Ill a ' lS (~. I kl ) 

Equity Shares on JO each fu lly paid held by As at March 31, 202 1 As at March 31, 2020 
Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares % Holdinl! No. of Shares % Holdinl! 
Gati Limited 3,50,000 70% 3,50,000 70% 
Kintetsu World Express (S) Pte. Ltd. 1,30,000 26% 1,30,000 26% 

f) No Equity Shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date. 

g) The company has neither allotted any equity shares for considerat ion other than cash nor has issued any bonus shares nor has bought back any shares during the 
pe1iod of five years preceding the date at which Balance Sheet is prepared. 

h) No calls are unpaid by any directors or officers of the company during the year. 

19. Other Eguitv 

Securities Premium 
General Reserve 

Retained Earnings 

T he description, nature and purpose of each reserve within other equity a rc as fo llows: -
Securities Pr emium 

As at 
March 3 1, 2021 

17,836 
1,720 

10,333 
29,889 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

17,836 

1,720 
14,945 
34,501 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The same can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of The Companies act, 
2013. 

General Reserve 
General reserve is the retained earnings of the company, which are kept aside out of the Company's profit to meet future (known or unknown) obligations. 

Retained Earnings 

Retained earnings comprise of net accumulated profi t I (loss) of the company, after declaration of dividend. 
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20. Long Tenn Borro 11 in gs 

Secured 
i) Tenn Loan From Banks 
ii) Tenn Loan From Others 

iii) Vehic le Loan From Banks 

iv) Vehic le Loan from Others 
Total (A) 

Amount disclosed under the head "Other Cu1Tent Financial 
Liabilities" (Refer Note 25) 
Tota l (B) 

Particulars of Nature of security 

As at Mardi 3 1, 2021 

No11 - Current 

939 

38 
106 
30 

1,1 13 

1,113 

Current 
l\laturiti cs 

( ~ in laJ..hs) 

As at !\larch 3 1, 2020 

Non - Current 
Current 

Maturit ies 

125 2,350 1,2 19 

109 147 98 
72 1,804 773 
63 394 238 

369 4,695 2,328 

(369) (2,328) 
(369) (2,328) 

4,695 

i) a) Rupee Tenn Loan from Bank is repayable in I quarterly instalment of ~ 125 lakhs between Ap1il 202 1 to June 202 1. The primary security being subsetvient 
charge on current assets and fixed assets of the company to the extent of I 00% coverage on loan amount and collateral being property at Peenya, Bangalore. The 
above tcnn loan is guaranteed by the Holding company. The loan canies interest one year MCLR+ 1.25% 
b) Rupee Term Loan from Bank is repayable in 47 monthly equal insta lment of ~ 23 lakhs between April 2022 to Febiurary 2026. The collateral being second 
charge on all primary and collateral securities available for the existing faci lities with the bank. The loan canies interest rate of 7.5% 

ii) Rupee Tem1 loan from other financial institution is hypothecated to its underlying fixed assets and is repayable in 16 monthly equal instalment of~ I 0 lakhs 
between April 202 1 to July 2022 for equipment financing, and the underlying assets arc hypothecated. The loan canies interest rate of Long tenn lending rate 
(LTLR) less 9.25% as announced by the institution from time to time. 

iii) & iv) Vehicles are hypothecated against the Vehicle loans from Banks & other financial institutions. 

21 Lease Liabilities 

Lease Obligation (Refer Note 38) 

Total 

22. Provisions 

Employee Benefits 
Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 
Leave Encashmenl 

Tota l 

23. Current Borrowings 

Secured 
i) Working Capita l facilities from Banks 

- Cash Credit/Working capital demand loan 

Total 

As at March 3 1, 2021 

Non - Current Current 

4,942 

4,942 

1, 122 

1,122 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2020 

Non - Current Current 

5,806 960 
5,806 960 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at As a t 
March 31, 202 1 March 3 1, 2020 

723 477 

34 1 277 
1,064 754 

(~ in lakhs) 

As a t As at 
Mar ch 3 1, 2021 March 3 1, 2020 

14,265 12,496 

14,265 12,496 

a) Working Capital Borrowings in rupees is secured by book debts and other current assets of the company on pari-passu charge with all working capital lenders 
under multiple banking arrangement. Weighted average rate of interest is 8.86%. 

24. Trade Pavables 

For Goods and Seivices 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note N o.40) 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro ente1priscs and small enterprises 

(a) Acceptances 
(b) Others 

As at 
March 31, 202 1 

343 

128 
7,822 
8,293 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

110 

1,357 
7,262 
8,728 
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25. O llH•r Financial Lia hilities 

CuJTcnl Ma1uri1ies of Long-lenn Bonmving Tenn Loan (Rcf.:r Nole 20) 

Interest accrued but not due on bonnwings 
Employee Rcla1cd Liabilities 

Security Deposits 

26. Other Current Liabilities 

Statuto1y dues 

Others 

27. Provisions 

Employee Benefits 
Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 
Leave Encasluncnt 

As at 
I\ larch 3 1, 202 1 

369 
19 

3,293 

2,786 

6,466 

As at 
March 3 1, 2021 

1,642 
3,438 

5,080 

As at 
March 31, 202 1 

245 
133 

377 

( ~ in lal..h-;) 

As al 
i\1arel13 1, 2020 

2,328 

55 
1,496 

2,358 

6,237 

(~ in lakhs) 

As a t 
March 3 1, 2020 

1,187.43 
2, 143.42 

3,330.85 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

93 
83 

176 
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28. Revenue from Oprrations 

Sale of Services 
Freight and other service charges 
[including from Holding Company~ 11 97 lakhs (Prc\'ious year~ 5229 lakhs)) 

Supply Chain Management services 
Total (A) 
Other Operating Revenue 

Miscellaneous Income 
Management fees 

Total (B) 

Grand Total (A) + (B) 

A. Revenue from contracts with customers d isaggregated based on revenue stream a nd by reportable segment 

Particulars 

Revenue based on product & services 
I. Segment Revenue (Net Sale I Income from each Segment) 
a) Express Distribution 

b) Other Operating Revenues 
T otal 

Revenue based on Geography 

India 

Overseas 

Reconciliation of Revenue from Operation with contract price 
Revenue as per contract price 

Less: 
Discounts 

Credit note 
Unsatisfied perfonnance obligation 

Revenue from Operation 

Transaction Price - Unsatisfied Performance Obligation 

(~ m lakhs) 

Y car ended Year cndrd 
March 31, 202 1 l\lnrch 31, 2020 

96,079 1,10.028 

4,778 5, 163 
1,00,857 1, 15,191 

175 319 
153 433 
328 752 

1,0 1,185 1,15,943 

(~ in lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

1,00,857 I, 15,191 
328 752 

1,01 ,185 1,15,943 

1,01,185 1, 15,943 

1,01,185 1,15,943 

1,05,671 1,20,175 

(96) (134) 
(1841) (1982) 
(2549) (211 6) 

1,01,185 1,15,943 

The Company's unsatisfied performance obligations mainly arises on account of undelivered shipments. The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to the 
unsatis fied performance obligations as at March 31 , 2021 is ~ 2549 lakhs, wh ich is expected to be recognised during next year. 

The Company recognises revenue at a point in time. Contract with customers are of short-tenn duration and all sales are direct to customers. 

Contract Balances 

Particulars 
Contract Assets 

Trade receivables 
Less: lmpainnent allowances 

Total 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

228 

21,443 
(3,002) 

18,441 

(~ in lakhs) 
Year ended 

March 31, 2020 

172 

22,506 
(2,266) 

20,240 

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the e::ntity's obligation to transfer 
goods or services to a customer for which tile entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when 
the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as and when the perfonnance obligation is satisfied. 

29. Other Income 

Interest Income from financial assets at amortized cost 
Deposits with Bank 
Interest on Income Tax refund 
Unwinding of financial asset 

Other Non Operating Income 

Rent 
Bad debts recovery 
Liabilities no longer required - wrinen back 

Others 
Total 

(~in lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

70 I ll 
277 

68 

8 20 
8 

99 230 
34 31 

496 460 
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30. Operating Expensrs 

Freigh1(lnc lucling10 Holding Company- Ni l. Previous year< 128 lakhs) 

Vehicles' trip expenses 

Handling Charges 

Vehic les' taxes 

Vehicles' Insurance 

Tyres and Tubes 

Supply Chain Management services 

Claims fo r Loss & Damages (Net) 

O ther Operating Expenses 

Total 

31. E mployee Benefits Expense 

Salaries, Wages & Bonus* 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 39) 

Staff Welfare Expenses 

Total 

(*) Refer note 44 on excess managerial remuneration paid during the current financial year. 

32. Finance Costs 

Interest Expenses 

Term Loans 

Working Capital Loans 

Lease liabilities 

Other Borrowing cost 

Total 

33. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 4A) 

Depreciation on Right-of-Use Asset (Re fer Note 4B) 

A mortisation of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 6) 

34. Other Expenses 

Lease Rentals (Refer Note 38) 

(Inc luding to Holding Company< 459 lakhs Previous year < 445 lakhs) 

Rates and Taxes 

Insurance 

Telephone expenses 

Printing and Stationery 

Travelling expenses 

Professional and Legal expenses 

Advertisement Expenses 

Office Maintenance and Repairs 

Electric ity Expenses 

Automation Network Expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 

Directors' Sitting fees 

Remuneration to Auditors (Note 34. I) 

A llowance for Doubtful receivables 

A llowance for other fi nanc ial assets 

Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 

Less: - Provision for loss allowance recognized in earlier years 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer Note 34.2) 

Donations 

Total (A) 

(~in la~ib) 

\'rar ended Year r ndctl 
l\1 arch 31 , 202 1 I\ larch 3 1, 2020 

59,047 67,427 

4,762 6,240 
1,791 2,432 

50 55 
65 41 

7 1 59 
3,27 1 3,524 

376 617 

7 17 861 
70,150 81,256 

(< in lakhs) 

Year ended Yea r· e nded 
March 31 , 2021 March 31, 2020 

13,961 14,048 

88 1 1, 161 

242 271 

15 084 15 480 

(< in lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31 , 2021 March 31, 2020 

533 596 

1,247 1,406 

794 846 

8 44 
2,582 2,892 

(<in lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

1,743 1,898 
1,232 1,179 

161 167 
3,136 3,244 

(<in lakhs) 

Year ended Year e nded 
March 31, 2021 Ma rch 31, 2020 

5,235 5,560 

452 333 

139 132 

85 132 

2 18 288 
187 537 

1,059 517 
76 268 

1,455 1,777 

757 929 

512 512 

602 827 
74 36 

6 9 

27 36 
747 848 
2 19 2 19 
102 525 
( 11) -76 
47 70 

36 

11 ,988 13,515 
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REPAlnS &. l\1A INTE 'ANCE 

Vehicles 
Planl and Equipmcnl 

Buildings 
Computers 

Tota l (B) 

Total (A) + (B) 

34.1 Payment to Auditor (excluding Goods and Service Tax) 

Statutory Audit fees 
Taxation matte rs 

Other mauers 
Reimbursement of out of Pocket Expenses 

34.2 C orporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 

65 116 
10 1 136 

17 7 
491 6 10 

674 869 

12,662 14,384 

(~in lakhs) 

Year ended Yea r ended 
March 31, 2021 March 3 1, 2020 

15 15 

6 
I I I I 

4 
27 36 

During the year, the company has incurred ~47lakhs (previous year no lakhs) on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) included under 01her 
(a) Expenses. 

(b) Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year is ~47 lakhs. 
(c) Amount of ~47 lakhs, approved by the board to be spent during the year 

(d) Amount spent during the year on: 

Particulars 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 

(ii) 'On purpose other than (i) above 

(e) Unsp ent Amount: 

Particulars 
Opening Balance as on April OJ , 2020 
Amount deposited in specified fund of Schedule Vfl within 6 months 
Amount required to be spent during the year 

Amount spent during the year 

C losing Balance as on March 31, 202 1 

35. Exceptional Items 

Loss on Asset Held for Sale Classification - Land & Building 
Loss on Asset Held for Sale Classification - Commercial Vehicles 
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 

Loss on disposal of Asset held for sale 

Total 

(~ in lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31 2021 March 31 2020 

47 70 

47 70 

(~ in lakhs) 

144 

47 
47 

144 

(~in lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2021 March 3 1, 2020 

3,459 

577 
85 
30 

4,151 

The Exceptional items (non-cash, non-recurring) of ~ 4, 151 lakhs represents diminution in the present fai r value of the assets sold during the year and proposed to 
be sold which is disclosed as "Assets held for Sale". 



CATI h'.I 'TEl SL EXPRESS PRl\'ATE Lll\llTED 

Noles on Financial S1a1c111c 111 s for lhr \'car Enckd l\larch 31, 2021 

36. Tax Expenses 

Profil Before Tax 

Income Tax recognised in S1a1cmc111 or Profit and Loss 
Currenl Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Total 

Income Tax recognised in O ther Com prehensive Income 

Deferred tax expenses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

To tal 

G ra nd T ota l 

Profit A ft er Tax 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 

Total Comprehensive Income 

36.1 Reconciliation of Income Tax exp ense for the year with book profits 

Profit before Tax 

Applicable Tax Rate 

Tax Expense 

Tax Effect of: 

Expenses non-deductible for tax purposes 

Expenses allowable for tax purposes 

Reversal of opening deferred tax due to change in tax rale 

Other Adjustmenls 

C urrent Tax provision (A) 

Effective Tax Rate 

\'car ended ' ca r C'nclcd 
I\ larch 31, 2021 I\ larch 3 1, 2020 

(6,08.t) (853) 

117 

( 1,71 8) ( 192) 

(1 ,718) (76) 

(83) (27) 

(83) (27) 
(J,80 1) ( 103) 

(4,366) (778) 

(246) (79) 

(4,612) (857) 

(6,084) (853) 

25. 17% 25.17% 
(l ,531) (215) 

2,421 122 

(1,064) ( 105) 

113 
( 1,544) 10 

(1,718) (76) 

28.23% 8.9% 

In lhe previous year, the company opted to exercise the option under section 115 BBA or the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation laws 
36.2 (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 and has taken 25.168% rate of corporate tax in its accounls. Accordingly, the company has recognized provisions for income tax 

and re-measured its deferred tax asse1s/liabilities on the basis of above option. 
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37. Contingrnt liabilitirs and commitments 

(I) Contingrnt liabilitirs (to thr rxtrnt not providrd for) 

(a) C laim against the Company not acknowlrclgrd as drbt 

(i) Income tax Demand disputed in appeals (includes amoun t paid under protest 
and adjustments of~ 199 1 lakhs. previous year - ~ 398 lak hs) 

(ii) Indirect Tax demand disputed in appeals 
(iii) Pending Litigations 

Total 

Notes: 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

2,382 

303 
354 

3,039 

(~in lakhs) 

As at 
1\1 arch 31, 2020 

1,794 

303 

429 
2,526 

a) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the 

above as it is detenninable only a receipt of judgements I decisions pending with various forums I authorities. 

b) The company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as 
contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially 
adverse effect on its financial position. Also, the Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities. 

(b) Bank Guarantee(*) 369 211 

(*) Bank Guarantee is issued to meet certain business obligations towards government agencies and certain customers. 

There has been a Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28, 2019, relating to components of salary structure that need to be taken into account 
(c) while computing the contribution to provident fund under the EPF Act. There are interpretative aspects related to the Judgement including the effective date 

of application. During the current year ended March 3 I , 202 I, Company is incompliance with same. The Company will continue to assess any further 
developments in this matter for the implications on financial statements, if any. Further, pending decision on the subject review petition and directions from 
the EPFO, the impact for the past period, if any, was not ascertainable and consequently no effect was given in the accounts. 

Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment has been notified in the official Gazette 0 1 

(d) September 29,2020 and its effective date is yet to be notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any 
related impact in the year the Code becomes effective. 

(II) C ommitments 

(a) C ommitment for acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipments and Inta ngible Assets (Net of advances) 

Towards Property, Plant & Equipment 
Towards Intangible Assets 

(b) For lease commitments Refer Note 38 

38. Leases 

As at 
March 3 1, 202 1 

20 
16 

36 

(~in lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

24 

62 

86 

The Company has lease contracts for certain items of Computers, Vehicles & Buildings. The Company's obligations under leases are secured by 
(a) the lessor 's title to the leased assets. 

(b) M ovement in lease liabilities dur ing the year ended March 31, 2021 

Particulars 

Lease liabilities at the beginning of the year 

Additions 
Interest cost accrued during the year 
Payment of lease liabilities 

Deletion 

Lease liabilities at the end of the year 

(c) Amount recognized in Profit or Loss 

Particulars 

Interest expense on lease liabil ities 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 

Expense relating to short tenn leases (included in other expenses & operating expenses) 

As at 
March 31, 202 1 

6,765 

456 
794 

( 1,768) 

( 183) 

6,064 

As at 
Mar ch 3 1, 2021 

794 
1,232 

6,301 
8,327 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

1442 

6124 

846 
(1,647) 

6765 

(~ in lakhs) 
As at 

March 31, 2020 

846 
I 179 

6674 

8,699 
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(cl) Amounts rrcognised in thr statrmrnt of cash flo" 

Particulars 

Tota l cash outflow for leases 

(r) Futurr payment of IC'asr liabilities on a n uncliscounted basis 

Particulars 

Not later than one year 
Later than one year but not later than fi ve years 

Later than fi vc years 

Total 
Current lease liabilities 

Non-current lease liabili ties 
Total Lease lia bilities 

As at 
March 3 1, 202 1 

1,768 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

1,807 
S,022 

1,880 

8,709 
1,122 

4,942 

6,064 

(t in lakh~) 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

1,647 

(tin la khs) 
As at 

March 31, 2020 

1,720 
5,385 
2,988 

10,093 

960 
5,806 
6,766 

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to 
lease liabilities as and when they fa ll due. 

39. Disclosure as required under lnd AS -19 on employee benefits 

Statement of Assets and Liabilities for defined benefit obligation 

Net defined benefit obligation - Gratuity Plan 

Net defined benefit asset - Gratuity Plan 
Total employee benefit (liabi lities) I Assets 

Defined contribution 

Provident/Pension fund 
Superannuation fund 

Employee state insurance 

Defined benefits - Gratuity 

As at 
March 31, 202 1 

(1 ,377) 
409 

(968) 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

721 

13 
120 
854 

(tin lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

( 1, 133) 

563 
(570) 

(tin lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

783 
36 

138 
957 

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of S 
years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirementJ tennination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed 
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes contributions to 
recognised funds in India. 

These defined benefit p lans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as currency ri sk, interest risk and market (investment) risk. 
The Company expects to contribute~ 348 lakhs to Gratuity Fund in the next year. 

Inherent risk 
The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risk pertaining to the plan. ln particular, this exposes 
the Company, to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. This may result in 
an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to longevity ri sk. 

The following tables analyse present value of defined benefit obligations, expense recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, actuarial assumptions 
and other in fonnation. 

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ lia bility: 

(I) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation 
(a) Balance at the beginning of the year 

(b) Current service cost 
(c) 

(cl) 
(e) 

Interest cost 

Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income 

change in demographic assumptions 
change in financial assumptions 
experience adjustments 

Balance at the end of the year 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

1,133 
128 

68 
(276) 

70 
11 7 

137 
1,377 

(tin lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

939 
127 

70 
( 123) 

(0) 

70 
so 

1,133 



G AT I KI NT ETSU EXPRESS PRIVAT E Ll l\ llTED 
Notrs on finan cia l Statements for the \'ca r Ended !\l arch 3 I. 202 I 

(I I) Reconci liation of present value of plan assets 
(a) Balance at the beginning of the year 

(b) Actual return on plan assets 
(c) Contributions by the employer 

(d) Contributions by the employee 
(e) Benefits paid 

(f) Acquisition Adjustment 
Balance at the end of the year 

(III) Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 

(a) Present value of defined benefit obligation 

(b) Fair value of plan assets 
Net defined benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet 

(IV) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 

(a) Current service cost 
(b) Past service cost 
( c) Interest cost 

(d) Interest income 
Amount charged to Profit or Loss 

(V) Rcmeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

(a) Actuarial gain I (loss) on defined benefit obl igation 

(b) Return on plan asset excluding interest income 
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

(VI) Plan assets 
Plan assets comprise of the fo llowing: 
(a) Investments with LIC 

( Vll Actuarial assumptions 
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages) 
(a) Discount rate 

(b) Future salary growth 
(c) Retirement age (years) 
(d) Withdrawal rates 

563 
32 
90 

(276) 

409 

( 1,377) 
409 

(968) 

128 

68 
(37) 
159 

324 

5 
329 

100% 

5.58% 
6.00% 

58 
25% 

403 

44 
120 

( 123) 
119 

563 

(1 , 133) 

563 
(570) 

127 

70 
(30) 
167 

120 
(14) 
106 

100% 

6.50% 
4.00% 

58 
9% 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rates under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08). 

(IX) Sensitivity analysis 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the 
defined benefit obligations by the amounts shown below: 

(a) Discount rate (1 % movement) 

(b) Future salary growth (1 % movement) 
( c) Withdrawal assumption ( 1 % movement) 

March 31, 2021 

Increase 
(42) 

44 

(3) 

Decrease 
45 

(42) 

3 

March 31, 2020 

Increase 
(70) 

80 
9 

Decrease 

80 
(7 1) 

(9) 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity 
of the assumptions as shown. 

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscountcd cash flows) 

I year 
2 to 5 years 
6 to 10 year 

more than I 0 years 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

348 

838 

370 
124 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

184 

493 
465 
764 
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40. Dur lo 1\1 icro rntcrprisrs ancl small rntcrprisrs 

(i) T he princ ipal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as 
at the end of the accounting year: 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 

Interest due on above 

Total 

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tem1s of section 16 of the M SM ED Act 2006 
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the accounting year 

(ii i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. 

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. 

(v) The amount of further inte rest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for 
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED 
Act 2006 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

343 

343 

(~ in lal-.hs) 

As al 
March 3 1, 2020 

110 

110 

Dues to Micro, small and Medium enterprises have been detennined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infomiation 

collected by the mana~ement (March 31, 2020 - 110 lakhs). 
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4 1. Fina ncia l instn1111cnts - fair va lues a nd risk manage ment 
A. Cntcgor) \\ isc cl assifica tion of fi na ncial instni n1cnts 

The following table shows the cany ing amounts and foi r values of fi nanc ial assets and fina ncial liabilities as at March 31 , 202 1 

Part iculars 

Fina ncia l assets not measured at fai r va lue 

Loans 
Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other bank balances 
Other fi nanc ial assets 

Financial liabilit ies not measured at fai r value 
Borrowing 
Lease Liabilities 

Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

FVTPL FVOC I 

Carrving a mount 

Other financia l O ther fin ancial 
assets a t a mortised lia bilities at 

cost amortised cost 

3,030 
18,441 

3,014 

1,082 
3 10 

25,877 

15,746 

6,064 
8,293 
6,098 

36,201 

The following table shows the ca rrying amounts and fai r va lues of financial assets and fi nancial liabilities as at March 31 , 2020 

Particula rs 

Fina ncial assets not measured at fai r va lue 
Loans 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other bank balances 
Other fi nancia l assets 

Financial lia bilities not measured at fa ir va lue 
BorrowinC? 
Lease Liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other financia l liabilities 

Fina ncial inst ruments measured at a mortised cost 

FVfPL FVOC I 

Carrying amount 

Other financial Other financial 

assets at a mortised liabilities a t 
cost a mor tised cost 

3,306 
20,240 

1,913 

928 

896 
27.283 

19.5 19 
6.765 
8,728 
3,909 

38,921 

(~ in lakhs) 

Total ca rrying 
amount 

3,030 
18,441 

3,01 4 
1,082 

3 10 
25,877 

15,746 

6,064 

8,293 
6,098 

36,201 

(~ in lakhs) 

T ota l ca rrying 
amount 

3,306 
20,240 

1,9 13 

928 

896 
27.283 

19.519 
6.765 
8,728 
3,909 

38,92 1 

The cany ing amount of the financial asset and financial liabilities measured at a mortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonably approximation of their fair 
value since the company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be sig nificantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled. 

B. Fina ncial r isk ma nagement 
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financ ial instruments: 

(i) Credit risk 
(ii) Liquid ity risk 

(iii) Market risk 

Risk ma nagement framework 
The Company's principal fi nancial liabilities inc ludes bonu wings, lease liabilities, trade payable and other fi nancial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial 
liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company' s principal fi nancial assets include trade receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents and other 
financial assets that derive d irectly from its operations. 

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's primary risk management focus is to minimise potential adverse 
effects of market risk on its financial pe1fonnance. The Company's exposure to credit risk is innuenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and 
the concentration of risk from the top few customers. The Company's risk management assessment and polic ies and processes are established to identify and analyse 
the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management 
polic ies and processes are reviewed regularly to renect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 
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(i) C redit risk 
Cred it risk is the risl.. of financ ial loss to the Company if a customer or counterpa11y to a financial instn1ment fa ils to meet its contractual obligations, and arises 
principally from the Company's receivables from customers a nd loans & Deposits given. Credit 1i sk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as 
well as c redit exposure to customers, includ ing outstanding accounts receivables. The max imum exposure lo credit risk is equal to the cany ing value of the financial 
assets. The objective o f managing counte1pa11y credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the countcrpai1ies, taking 
into account their fina nc ial position, past experi ence and other factors. 

a) Trade receivables 
As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision mat1ix to mitigate the iisk of default 
payments and makes appropliate provisions at each repo1ting date whenever is for longer period and involves higher 1i sk. The Company uses expected credit loss 
model to assess the impainncnl loss or gain in accordance with Ind AS I 09. T he Company uses a provision matiix to compute the credit loss allowance for trade 
receivables. 

The movement of Trade Receivables and Exoected Credit Loss are as follows: (~ in lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 3 1, 202 1 March 31, 2020 

Trade Receivables (Gross) 2 1,443 22,506 

Less: Expected Credit Loss 3,002 2,266 

Trade Receivables (Net) 18,44 1 20,240 

Reconcilia tion of loss allowance pr ovision (Tr a de r eceivables) Amount 

Loss Allowance on I" Apiil 2019 1,493 

Change in Loss allowance 773 
Loss Allowance as on March 3 1, 2020 2,266 
Change in Loss allowance 736 
Loss Allowance as on March 3 1, 2021 3,002 

b) Loa ns (Security deposits given) 
The company has security deposits with lessors for leased premises at the year end. The credit worthiness of such lessors is evaluated by the management on an 
ongoing basis and is considered good. 

(ii) Liqu idity risk 
Liquidity iisk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable plice. Prndent liquidity risk 
management implies maintaining suffic ient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet 
obligations when due. The C::nnpany's fi nance team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related 
to such 1i sks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash 
flows. 

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both 
nonnal and stressed conditions, without incurling unacceptable losses or lisk.ing damage to the Company's reputation. 

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of fi nancial liabilities at the reporting dale based on contractual undiscounted 

payments. 

March 3 1, 2021 

BOl1'0Wings 
Lease Liabilities 
Trade Payables 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Mar ch 31, 2020 

Bon-owings 
Lease Liabilities 
Trade Payables 

Other Financial Liabilities 

(iii) Floating excha nge r ate a nd interest r ate risk 
Floating exchanges r ates 

Ca rrying a mount 
T otal 

15,746 15,746 
6,064 8,709 
8,293 8,293 
6,098 6,098 

36,20 1 38,846 

Carrying amount T ota l 

19,519 19,519 
6,765 10,093 
8,728 8,728 

2.2Q2 39Q9 
38,92 1 42,249 

(~ in lakhs} 

Contractual Cashflows 
Less tha n I Year I to 5 yea rs More than 5 years 

14,633 1,113 
1,807 5,022 1,880 

8,293 

6,098 
30,831 6,135 1,880 

(~ in lakhs} 

Contractua l Cashflows 
Less than I Year I to 5 year s More than 5 years 

14,824 4,695 
1,720 5,385 2,988 

8,728 

2.2Q2 
29,181 10,080 2,988 

Floating exchanges rate risk is the risk that changes in market plices - such as interest rates - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instmments. The object ive of market risk ma nagement is to manage and control market lisk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 
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Foreign cu rTcnc~ risk 
Then: is no foreign cu1Tency cxposurl' outstanding at the year end (Prt'vious Year - Nil). The Company doe' 1101 have foreign c111T~ncy exposure and hence is nol 
exposed to any foreign cu1Te11cy risk. 

lntcr·est rat e risk 
ln1erest rale risk is the ri sk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financ ial instrumen1 will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company 
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primari ly to the Company's long tenn and sho11 tenn borrowing with floating interest rates. The 
company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve a optimal maturity profile and financing cost. 

The interest rate profi le of the Company's interest bearing fi nancial instnuncnts at the end of the report ing period arc as follows: 

Particulars 

Fixed rate instruments 

Fina ncial a ssets 
Fina ncia l liabilit ies 

Tenn Loan From Banks 
Veh ic le Loan From Banks 

Vehic le Loan from Others 
Finance lease Obligation (refer note 38) 

Varia ble rate instruments 

F inancial assets 
Fina ncial liabilities 

Tenn Loan From Banks 
Tenn Loan From Others 

Cash Credit 

Sensitivity a nalysis 

As at 
Ma rch 31, 2021 

939 
178 
92 

6,064 

7,273 

125 

147 
14,265 
14,537 

21,810 

(~ in lakhs) 

As at 
March 3 1, 2020 

2,577 
631 

6,765 

9,973 

3,569 
246 

12,496 
16,31 1 
26,284 

Fixed rate instruments that are canied at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk for the purpose of sensitive analysis. 
A reasonab ly possible change of I 00 basis points in variable rate instruments al the repo11ing dates would have increased or decreased profit or loss by the amounts 
shown below: 

Particulars 

Va1iable rate instruments - increase by I 00 basis points 
Variable rate ins truments - decrease by 100 basis points 

Effect on profit before tax 

March 3 1, 202 1 March 31 , 2020 
145 163 

(145) (163) 

(~ in lakhs) 

Effect on Equity 

March 31 , 202 1 March 3 1, 2020 
145 163 

( 145) (163) 

The sensitivity analysis above has been detennined for bormwings assuming the amount of borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding 

for the whole year. 

42. Ca pita l management 
The Company 's policy is to ma intain a stable and strong capital structure with a foc us on total equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and 
to sustain future development and growth of its business. In order to maintain the capital strucrure the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of 
dividends to equity shareholders. The Company aims to manage its capital effic iently so as to safeguard its abili ty to continue as a going concern and to optimise 
returns to all its shareholders. For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the 
equ ity holders, debt includes cu1Tcnl maturities of long tenn bonuwings. 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio. 

Par ticula rs 

Bo1rnwings(including cu1Tent maturities of Long tenn bonuwing) 

Less:-
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 

Net Debt 

Equity 
Debt to equity ratio 

Yea r ended 
Ma r ch 3 1, 2021 

15,746 

3,01 4 
1,082 

11,650 
29,939 

0 .39 

(~ in lakhs) 

Year ended 
Ma rch 3 1, 2020 

19,519 

1,913 
928 

16,678 
34,55 1 

0.48 
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43. Earnings per Sha re 

Profit/( Loss) for the year 
Weighted average number of shares (Nos.) 
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (In ~) 

Nominal value of shares outstanding ( In ~) 

Year ended 
March 3 1, 2021 

(4,366) 

5.00,000 
(873.23) 

10 

(~ in la!..hs) 

Year ended 
March 3 1 2020 

(778) 

5,00,000 

( 155.50) 
10 

44. a) The managerial remuneration paid to the fonner Executive c hainnan and Managing Director (CM D) and cutTCnl Deputy Managing Director of the company for the 
year ended March 31, 202 1 has exceeded the limit prescribed under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 20 13 by ~ 175 lakhs exclud ing ~ I 00 
lakhs paid as onetime exgratia to the DMD by the Holding Company "Gali Limited". Pending necessary approvals for the waiver of excess remunerat ion, no 
adjustment to the financial statements has been made as on March 31 , 2021 and the said matter has been mentioned as an emphasis of matter by statutory auditor. 

b) The managc1ial remuneration paid to the fonncr Executive chaimian and Managing Director (CMD) and the Deputy Managing Director o f the company for the 
year ended March 3 1, 2020 bad exceeded the limit presc1ibed under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 by ~ 403 lakhs. This excess 
remuneration has been waived off by the shareholders of the said subsidiaiy company at their AGM held on December 02, 2020 by passing the Special Resolution. 
However, the waiver pertaining to the Executive CMD was conditional subject to the full refund of the excess of manage1ial remuneration paid to him for FY' 20 19 
(amounting to~ I 06 Lakhs) on or before January 3 1, 202 1. The same was recovered in full and hence the waiver of excess remuneration for FY 2020 was accorded. 

45. The Company has initiated recove1y of overdue advances given ~ 732 lakhs to a party in an earlier year and out of which ~ 43 7 lakhs is outstanding as of March 31, 
202 1. Out of the amount receivable, the management has provided ~ 219 lakhs in earlier year and the balance amount has been provided in the cun-cnt year. A MoU 
has been signed with a revised repayment schedule which has been agreed between company and the party in whic h this amount is a lso included. 

46. Company has adopted an Asset Light Strategy, basis which the decision was taken to sell the immovable properties and company owned commercial vehicles and use 
the proceeds from such sale to pare the debt. Net book value of assets c lassified held for sale as at March 3 I, 202 1 amounting to ~ 11,506 Lakhs. Exceptional item 
refers to loss on fair value of such assets as at March 31 , 202 1 in line with Ind AS I 05. 

47. Company has overdue receivables from its fellow subsidiary "GATI Import Export private limited" amounting to~ 160 lakhs towards freight services and rental 
income, where the business operations are also discontinued. The company is now in possession of the title deeds of a land property, which is an adequate secu1ity. 

48. The COVID- 19 pandemic continues to spread throughout the world. The perfonnance of the Company operation was impacted du1ing the fi rs t quaiter, following 
nationwide lockdown by the Government of lndia. The Company has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives from the Government of India. The 
company has taken-into-account the impact of COVID - 19 in preparation of financ ial results includ ing its assessment of going concern and recoverability of the 
canying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. The extent to which the pandemic will impact our future financ ial statements are currently uncertain and will 
depend on various other economic developments. 
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Notes on Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021 

49. Related party disclosures 

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship for the year ended March 31 , 2021 

a) Ultimate Holding Company 
Allcargo Logistics Limited 

b) Holding Company 
Gati Limited 

c) Fellow Subsidiaries 
i) Gati Kausar India Ltd 

ii) Gati Import Export Trading Ltd 
iii) Gati Cargo Express (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 

d) Entities in which Key Managerial Personnel & their relatives able to excecise significant influence 

i) Giri Road lines and Commercial Trading Priva te Limited • 
ii) TCI Hiways Pvt.Ltd. * 
iii) Gali Academy • 
iv) Jaldi Trader.; & Commerce House Pvt Ltd. • 

v) Share India ••• 
vi) Solanex Solar Energy Private Limited • 

vii) P.D.Agarwal Foundation • 

viii) ABC India Limited* 

*Ceased to qualify as a related party on September 28. 2020 

e) Enti ties under common influence /control " i th the company 

i) Kintetsu World Express ( India) Pvt. Ltd. 

ii) TCI Telenet Solutions Pvt Ltd • 

I) List of Key M anagerial Pe rsonnel: 

Executive directors 
i) Mr. Mahendra Agarwal• 

ii) Mr. Bala Subramanian Aghoramurthy 
iii) Mr. Adar.;h Hegde ( w.e.f. October 05. 2020) 

Non-Executive directo rs 
i) Mr. R Ramachandran 

ii) Ms. Sheela Bhide 
iii) Mr. Kok Seng Tan 
iv) Mr. Kazuhisa kawamura 

v) Mr. Sushi lKumar J iwarajka (Appointed on 19.09.2019 & Res igned on 05.12.2019) 
vi) Mr. Mohinder Pal Bansa l (Appointed on 05.10.2020 & Resigned on 04.03.2020) 

••ceased to be re lated party on August 16. 2020 due to disinvestment in Gati Asia Pacific by Gati Ltd and become a fellow subsidiary to Allcargo Logistics Ltd 

••• No transactions during the year. 

"000\-\I & C'q 
0 * * (/) 
CJ ;w 

<;>),...~ ,;;(;::"' 

~,.ed Acc,O 



49. Related party disclosures (contd .. ) 
(8) Summary of the transactions with related oarties: (~ in lal.h') 

SI. Key Managerial Personnel Entities in which Significant 
Entities under common 

No. 
Nature of transactions 

& Relatives Influence Exists 
influence /control with the Ultimate Holding Company Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Total 

company 
(i) EXPENDITURE 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 20 19-20 2020-2 I 2019-20 

a) Rent - - - - -
TCI Finance Ltd - - - - - - - - - -
Giri Roadlines & Commercial Trading Pvt Ltd - - 32 64 - - - - - - - 31 64 
Jaldi Traders & commerce house Pvt Ltd - - 75 150 - - - - - - 75 150 
P.D. Agarwal Foundation - 21 II - - - - - Z I I I 
TCI Telenct Solutions Pvt Ltd - - - 16 36 - - - - - 16 J6 
Gati Limited - - - - - - 459 445 - 459 HS 
ABC India Limited I 2 - - - - - I 2 
Allcargo Logistics Ltd - - - - - - 15 - - - 15 -

619 70R 
b) Remuneration 

Mahendra Agarwal 152 340 - - - - - - - - 152 J40 
Bala Aghoramurthy 293 304 - - - - - - - - - - 29J J04 
Adarsh Hedge 87 - - - - - - - - 87 
Sitting Fees - -
Sheela Bhide 3 4 - - - - - - - - J 4 
R Ramachandran 3 4 - - - - - - - - - J 4 
Mohinder Pal Bansal 0 - - - - - - - - - 0 -
SushilKumar J iwarajka - I - - - - - - - I 

5.'R 65J 

c) Fuel Expenses - - - - I - I 
d) Freight Expenses 

TCI Hi-Ways Pvt Ltd - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Gati Kausar India Ltd - - - - - - - - 18 38 18 JR 
Gati Limited (Railway Expenditure) - - - - - 128 - - - IZH 

18 166 

e) Management Fees - -
Gati Limited - - - - - - - 150 143 - - ISO 143 

All Cargo Logistics Ltd - - - - - - 102 - - - - - 102 
252 14J 

I) Manpower Expenses 
Gati Academy - - 245 602 - - - - - 245 602 

2..J5 602 

g) Donation 
Share India - - - 36 - - - - - - - 36 

- 36 

h) Employees Compensation Cost - - - - - - - - 18 - IX 

i) Electricity Expenditure 
Solaflex Solar Energy Private Limited - - 6 12 - - - - - - - 6 12 

6 12 



(~ in l a~h<) 

SI. Key Managerial Personnel Ent ities in which Significant 
Ent ities under common 

No. 
Nature of transactions & Rela tives Infl uence Exists 

influence /control with the Ultimate Holding Comp any Holding Company Fellow Subsidia ries T ot>1I 

company 

(ii) INCOME 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 211 19-20 

a) Fre ight 
Kintentsu World Express ( India) Pvt Limited - - - - 656 705 - - - - - 6='6 -o=' 
Gati Limited - - - - - - 1.197 5.229 - 1.197 5.22<> 
Gali Import Export Trading Limited - - - - - - - - - 23 737 2J 737 
Allcargo Logistics Limited - - 4 - - - - 4 

- - - - I.RHO 6.67 1 
b) Warehouse Income 

Gali Academy - 2 10 - - - - - - - - 2 10 
TCI Hi-Ways Pvt Ltd - 2 4 - - - - - 2 4 
Kintentsu World Express (India) Pvt Limited - - - - 166 362 - - - - - IM ~62 

Gati Import Export Trading Limited - - - - - - - - - 3 7 ·' 7 
Fozal Power Private Limited - - - - - - - - - - - -
Gati Cargo Express (Shanghai) Co. Ltd - - - - - - - - - - 2 28 2 ZR 

175 411 
C) O ther Operating Income 

Gati Limited (Management Fee) - - - - - - - - 153 433 - - 153 433 
Gati Limited (Otl1ers) - - - - - I - I 

154 433 
D) Interest Income 

Ja ldi Traders & commerce house Pvt Ltd - - II - - - - II 
- - - - - - - - - II 

(iii) Dividend Paid - - -
Kinte tsu World Express (India) Pvt. Ltd - - 43 - - - - 43 
Gati Limited - - - - - - - - 756 - - i 56 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 799 



GATI KJNTETSU EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2021 

49. Related party disclosures (contd .. ) 

····-· - - - - - - -•;;. ~ ----- · · - --- --- --- JI- - -·· -~ · 

SI. Entities under common Key Managerial Personnel Entities in which Significant 
Nature of transactions influence /control with the Ultimate Holding Company No. & Relatives Influence Exists 

company 

As at Asal As at As at As al As at As at As at 
March 31, March 31, March 31 , March 31, March 31, March 31. March 31, March 31, 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 
(iv) a) Sundry Debtors 

TC! Hi Ways Pvt Ltd - - - l - - -
Gati Academy - - - - - - -
Kintenlsu World Express (India) Pvt Limited - - - - 155 269 -
Gali Limited - - - - - - -
Gati Import Export Trading Limited - - - - - - -
Allcargo Logistics Ltd - - - - - - 3 

b) Other Receivables 

Mr. Mahendra Agarwal - 247 - - - - -
Gati Limited - - - - - -
Gati Kausar India Ltd - - - - - - -
Gati Import Export Trading Ltd - - - - - - -
Gati Cargo Express (Shanghai) Co. Ltd - - - - - - -

b) Deposits Given 

Solafiex Solar Energy (P) Ltd - - - 20 - - -
Jaldi Traders & Commerce House (P) Ltd - - - 93 - - -
TCI Telencl Solu1ions (P) Ltd - - - - - 18 -
Gali Limi1cd - - - - - - -

c) Sundry C reditors 

Share India - - - 3 - - -
Giri Road lines & Commercial Trading (P) Ltd - - - 6 - - -
Gati Limited - - - - - - -
Gati Kausar India Ltd - - - - - - -
Solafiex Solar Energy (P) Ltd - - - 2 - - -
TC! Telenet Solutions Pvt Ltd - - - - - 3 -
ABC India Limited - - - - - -
P.D.Agarwal Foundatio n - - - - - 9 -
Gali academy - - - 14 - - -
Allcargo Logistics Limited - - - - - - 127 

d) Other Operational Advances 
TC I Hiways Pvt. Ltd. - - - 437 - - -
Less: - Provision on Advances - - - (219) - - -

el Coroorate Guarantee taken - - - - - -
Note: 

(a) This is to confinn that the above transactions are (i) comprehensive and 

(c)Relatcd Party Transactions for which approval of the Audit Committee has been taken are well within the ambit of Omnibus Approval given by the Audit committee. 
(d) The amounts outstanding arc unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given for FY 2020-21. 
(e)The remuneration of directors is determined by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

l'C '" lalill') 

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Total 

As at As at As at As at As at \~at 
March 31, March 31, March 31. March 31. \larch J I. \forC'h JI. 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 !020 

- - - - I 
- - - - - -
- - - - 155 269 
77 4,052 - - 77 .t.052 

- - 154 195 154 195 
- - - - 3 -

389 .t.517 

- - - - - 2~7 
101 379 - - 101 .~79 

- - 41 34 41 3.t 
- - 6 2 6 2 
- - - 6 - 6 

148 661! 

- - - - - 20 
- - - - - 93 
- - - - - 18 
575 719 - - 575 719 

575 850 

- - - - - 3 
- - - - - 6 
80 279 - - 80 279 

- - I 2 I 2 
- - - - - 2 
- - - - - 3 
- - - - - -
- - - - - 9 

- - - - - 14 

- - - - 127 -
208 318 

- - - - - .tJ7 
- - - - - (21 9) 

- 21 8 
125 3150 - - 12!' 3.1 50 



CATI KINTETSU EXPRESS PRl\'ATE LIMITED 

Notes on Financilll Statements for the Year Ended March 31 , 2021 

so. 

51. 

The Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) has identified one business segment viz. Express distribution and there is no other 
reporting segment. 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped I rec lassified wherever necessary to confinn to the cu1Tent year's presentation. 

The financial statement are approved for issue by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on May I 8, 202 I and by the Board of Directors at 
52· its meeting held on May 18, 202 I. 

As per our report of even date 

For Singhi & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Finn Registra · n No: 302049£ 

Partner 

Membership no: 066274 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: May 18, 2021 

egde 

Chairman & Ma aging director 

~~/p( Dn<·~ 
t Rohan M;ttal 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: May 18, 2021 

TS Maharani 
Company Secretary 

M No. F8069 


